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TESTIMONY 

TO:  Chairman King and Members of  the Senate Judiciary Committee 

From: John Shultz, Deputy General Counsel, Kansas Department of Revenue  

Date: March 2, 2016  

Re: Testimony for HB 2289 (2015)   

 

Good morning Chairman King and Members of the Committee. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to appear today and testify on behalf of the Kansas Department of 

Revenue, to express the Department’s opposition to portions of House Bill 2289 (Bill).  

I am John Shultz, Deputy General Counsel for the Kansas Departement of Revenue.  

 

This purpose of Section 1 of this Bill is to require that a law enforcement Officer’s Certification 

and Notice of Suspension, commonly known as a DC-27, contain a certification that the officer’s 

initial encounter with the licensee occurred pursuant to a lawful encounter. The Department is 

opposed to this section of the Bill in its current form. The purpose of Section 2 is to require that 

the Department issue an order prior to the administrative hearing that allows a licensee or an 

attorney representing a licensee to obtain a copy of the police report. The Department supports 

the police report requirement in Section 2. 

 

While the Department appreciates the work and recommendations of the Judicial Council and the 

House of Representatives, the Department still has concerns about the Bill in its current form.  

 

This Bill is intended to overcome the Kansas Supreme Court decision in Martin v. Kansas Dept. 

of Revenue, 285 Kan. 625,  (2008), in which the Court determined the Exclusionary Rule does 

not always apply in an action to suspend driving privileges as the result of an abuse of that 

privilege by a licensee. The Kansas Supreme Court noted the “remedial imperative of preventing 

alcohol and/or drug-impaired drivers from injury or killing themselves or others.”(953) The 

Court stated that “[r]esponsive administrative license regulation is essential to that public good” 

and “should not be hamstrung by application of the [exclusionary] rule.” However, the Martin 

court did not bar the use of the exclusionary rule entirely, citing Turner 1, they state: “We noted 

that use of the rule might be warranted if, under a totality of circumstances, police misconduct 

was egregious.” (951) The Court also held that reasonable suspicion for the stop or initial 

encounter with a licensee was not one of the issues the legislature intended to provide a defense 

to the administrative suspension of a person’s drivers’ license based on K.S.A. 8-1020(h)(1), (2) 

or (3). 

 

Since Martin, there has been a positive impact on the number of licensees that request 

administrative hearings, there has been a positive impact on the length of time it takes to conduct 

administrative hearings and the length of time it takes to conduct trials in the district courts. 



However, the most important impact the Martin decision appears to have had is in the reduction 

of State Traffic Fatalties associated with DUIs by over 10%.  See the attached Table. 

 

Of course there are other factors that may have impacted the reduction in traffic fatalities such as 

the DUI Task Force and the surrounding publicity that the legislature, prosecutors and law 

enforcement officers on the streets are getting tougher on DUI offenders.  The legislature has 

also been more accommodating by enacting the ignition interlock statutes which allow people to 

mainitain their employment by obtaining an ignition interlock after being suspended for only 45 

days as a result of any test failure or 90 days for any test refusal. There have been numerous 

advertising campaigns that have had an impact as well. My point is, whatever it is we are all 

doing to reduce traffic fatalities in this state it is clearly having an impact, so why would we want 

to change the course of our actions now?  

 

The current DC-27 already requires that the officer certify the reason for the initial contact or 

stop. Furthermore, the officer is required to certify that all of the statements made on the DC-27 

are true and accurate. If the statements are not true and accurate the officer may be charged with 

with a class B nonperson misdemeanor. 

 

This Bill would require that the Department change the DC-27 form to state that the test refusal 

or failure occurred pursuant to a lawful encounter. It appears that this is a distinction without a 

difference. If the officer is already certifying the factual basis for the encounter and he is doing 

so under penalty of prosecution what difference would a change to the form make? 

 

Although the Department is still opposed to legislation that will have the effect of reversing the 

Martin decision, in the spirit of compromise, the Department reached out to the proponents of 

this Bill with proposed amendments that would achieve the goals of the proponents of the Bill 

without the necessity of changing the DC-27 form or resulting in significant cost increases to the 

Department. Unfortunately we could not reach an agreement. I have copies of the proposed 

amendments with me if the committee would like to review them. 

 

The Department’s proposed amendments to this Bill are as follows. 

 

The current version of this Bill creates a conflict within the Implied Consent Act.  On one hand 

the Department is precluded from evaluating constitutional issues at the initial administrative 

hearing level (See Section 1(d)).  On the other hand, the administrative hearing officer is 

required to evaluate the factual circumstances contained in the officer’s certification.  (See 

Section 2(g)) Clarification needs to be made in the Bill to indicate that an officer’s certification 

to “lawful encounter” is not a factual circumstance to be evaluated under Section 2(g). 

 

There are some simple fixes that can be made that should satisfy the proponents of this Bill 

without a drastic increase in costs to the Department. The portions of Section 1 (page 1, lines 26-

31 and page 2, lines 6-12) requiring the officer to certify the test refusal or failure occurred 

pursuant to a lawful encounter should be entirely removed. This will resolve the need for a 

complete reprint and redistribution of the DC-27 statewide. In addition, because the KDHE has 

already programmed the DC-27 into the new Intoxilyzer 9000, if the form is changed they will 

have to reprogram the instruments which will delay the delivery of the instrument and add costs 

to KDHE. In addition, it will make the Bill clear that constitutional issues and the reason for the 

initial encounter will not be issues that will be decided by the administrative hearing officer 

because the issue is not an issue contained in the officer’s certification.  The language in Section 



1 (page 3, lines 7-10) should be replaced with “constitutional issues cannot be decided at the 

administrative hearing but may be preserved and raised in a petition for review of the hearing as 

provided in subsection (p) of K.S.A. 8-1020.” This resolves a conflict with existing 

administrative law that this Bill creates. The Bill indicates that all constitutional issues are 

automatically preserved at the administrative hearing as opposed to current law that requires that 

a party exhaust their administrative remedies by actually litigating the issue at the administrative 

hearing before they can raise the issues in the district court appeal. The portion in Section 2 of 

the Bill (page 8, lines 40-42) should be replaced to read”the court shall also determine the 

lawfulness of the law enforcement encounter if raised by the petitioner.” The current version of 

the Bill requires the court to “determine constitutional issues including, but not limited to the 

lawfulness of the initial encounter.” Finally, the language in Section 2 (page 9 line 1) is 

redundant and should be removed.  This will permit but not require the courts to consider 

whether the initial encounter was lawful and taylor a remedy to the facts and circumstances of 

each case.   

 

The passage of this Bill in its current form is estimated to cost the Department over $300, 000.  

The time required by administrative hearing officer’s to conduct hearings would increase by 

twenty-five (25) percent.  In addition to the hearings taking longer to conduct there will be a 

significant increase in the number of hearings requested. The Department anticipates the number 

of hearings requested will increase by at least thirty (30) percent. An increase in the number of 

administrative hearings always results in additional appeals to the district court and the amount of 

time it takes to try the case, especially with additional issues involved. 

 

The amendments the Department is proposing will significantly reduce the costs associated with 

the passage of the Bill and accomplish everything the proponents of the Bill are asking for.  

 

Thank you for considering my testimony, I now stand for questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

John Shultz, 

Deputy General Counsel 

Kansas Department of Revenue 

 
 

 

 

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Kansas Traffic Fatalities 385 386 431 386 405 350 385 

Kansas Traffic Fatalities (no BAC level or no BAC 
recorded) 225 208 239 253 284 230 263 

Kansas Traffic Fatalities (BAC .1 - .7) 12 23 25 23 20 18 18 

Kansas Traffic Fatalities (BAC .08 or greater) 145 154 168 108 98 102 103 

Kansas Traffic Fatalities (BAC .15 or greater) 99 102 110 69 73 74 69 

Percentage of Traffic Fatalities with .08 or greater alcohol 
involvment with one of the drivers. 38% 40% 39% 28% 24% 29% 27% 
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